IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

The petitioner/ Appellant is Leonardo C. Mariano, 82 years old, widower living alone 

and residing in 1123 Rainier Av., Unit 415, Everett, Washington State, 98201. After retiring 

from the Congress of the Philippines, as a career economist, he migrated to the United States 

in 1991. He was sponsored by his daughter who was born in Washington D.C. in 1969 when 

Petitioner was with the World Bank. 

In 2011, Appellant filed a medical malpractice complaint against Swedish Heart 

Surgery, on claims of wrong diagnosis and unnecessary heart bypass. The trial court. after 

reconsideration, granted Swedish Motion for Summary Judgment, citing Jack of "expert 

opinion". the Court of Appeals. after reconsideration, affirmed on ground of lack of "expert 

testimony". 

Petitioner is representing himself in this case 

This petition is asking the Supreme Court of Washington State to review the decision 

of the Court of Appeals.(Appendix A) 

CITATIONS TO COURT OF APPEALS DECISIONS 

Appellant respectfully requests the Supreme Court to review the November 25, 2011 

decision of the Court of Appeals, especifically, the following citations are being submitted 

for review. Some appear to be in violation of the constitution nat right of due process. 

Page 1, 1st paragraph, re reason for dismissal. 

Page 1, last paragraph and Page 2, first par., re name of expert witnesses. 

Page 4, 1st par., re role of experts. 

Page 4, last par., re identity of expert. 
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Page 5, 2nd par., re doctrine of res ipsa loquitur. 

Page 5, last par. and page 6, 1st and 2nd par., re informed consent. 

Page 6, last par., re CR 59. 

Page 7, 1st par., re further continuances. 

Page 7, 2nd par., re court saala proceeding. 

Page 7, last par., restriking of exhibits. 

The order of the Court of Appeals denying Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration 

dated February 9, 2014 contains no text. (Appendix B) 

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

A. Swedish rejected the Appellant's evidence, such as reports of medical 

tests, when they are considered admissible by laws and judicial rulings 

!:.._Appellant was denied his constitutional! right of due process when Swedish 

imposed an arbitrary and self-serving condition which Appellant cannot meet. 

C. The medical malpractice case requires only the support of alternative expert 

opinion . 

.Q.: Appellant was denied his constitutional right of due process when the 

trial judge adopted a rush-to-judgment approach. 

E. General issues linked to the above four main issues. 

S T A T E M E N T 0 F THE C A S E 

May 2. 2011 . Plaintiff Leonardo C. Mariano, prose, filed a medical malpractice 

complaint against Swedish Cardiac Surgery. 

November 23, 2011. Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment filed. 

March 2, 2012. The Superior Court granted Swedish Motion for Summary 
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Judgment. 

April 2. 2012. The Superior Court denied Plaintiff's Motion for Reconsideration. 

Novemer 25, 2013. The Court of Appeals affirmed the decision of the Superior Court 

to grant Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment. 

January 9, 2014. The Court of Appeals denied Appellant's Motion for Reconsideration. 

February 8, 2014. Appellant filed a Petition for Review with the Supreme Court. 

ARGUMENT 

Issue A : In its November 25, 2013 decision granting Swedish's Motion for 

Summary Judgment, the Court of Appeals ruled: 

II •••• We affirm, holding that summary judgment was appropriate 

because Mariano failed to provide the required expert testimony 

for his claim". (Page 1, ist paragraph, Appendix A) 

With this decision, the court rejected the reports on medical interventions and tests 

done by Swedish and by the Everett Clinic (Appellant's caregiver) which were submitted as 

evidence in support of Appellant's medical malpractice claim. This is a direct contradiction 

with existing laws and judicial decisions as legal as shown below. 

1. 11 Medical records are generally relevant and admissible in a medical 

malpractice trial." Bell v. State. 147 Wn2d 166, 181, 52 P.3d 502 (2002) 

2. "Reports of lab test results contained in the physicians's medical file 

are admissible." RCW 5.45.020 

3. "The Plaintiff may obtain from the Defendant, testifying as an adverse 

witness, the required expert testimony." Douglas v. Freeman, 117 Wn.2d 

242, 20. 814 P.2d 1160 (1991) 
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4. "(Expert testimony) ... is not required when medical facts are observable 

by a layman's senses and describable without medical training." 

Mclaughlin v. Cooke, 112 Wn.2d 829,838, 774 P.2d 1171 (1989) 

5 "A malpractice case may be proved without the aid of expert testimony 

by a chain of circumstances from which an ordinary layman may 

reaspnable and naturally infer the ultimate fact required to be 

established." Shellenbarger v. Brigman, 101, Wn.App.339, 347, 

3 P.3 211 (2000) 

Issue B: In relation to the First Issue, the Court of Appeals ruled in its 

November 25, 2013 decision: 

" Mariano failed to identify any expert who testify in support of his 

claims ....... " (Page 4, last par., Appendix A) 

Here, "expert testimony" is a doctor who will testify in court. Medical consultants 

usually charge $ 500/hour, with indefinite number of hours. Appellant cannot afford to hire a 

consultlant since his only source of income is social security as shown in Exhibit C. Under this 

situaion, Swedish is unfairly exploiting to serve its interest the unfortunate circumstance of 

Appellant. 

Issue C: In relation to the Second Issue on medical consultants, the Court of 

Appeals ruled: 

" the proper procedure for coronary arterial bypass surgery is for 

beyond the common understanding or expertise of a layperson." 

(Page 5, 2nd par., Appendix A) 
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Appellant strongly contends his medical malpractice complaint is a simple matter. 

What is being asked are yes-or-no answers to two claims. There are no medical parameters at 

all. And, the answers were provided by reports of medical test and procedure done by two 

cardiologists of Swedish 

On the wrong diagnosis claim. In his letter summarizing the results of the diagnostic 

cardiac chaterization he conducted, Dr. John Pettersen wrote: 

artery: 

II the best approach in this case is with direct coronary revascularization (bypass) 

and I have asked Dr. David Gartman to see Mr. Mariano for this procedure . 

.... now that I know the anatomy with the critical lesion in his RIGHT coronary 

artery that I suspect is the 'culprit lesion ...... 11 Appendix D) 

However, as the record shows, the heart bypass surgery was done on the LEFT 

"OPERATION: 1. Coronary artery bypass graft x 4 with LIMA (left internal mammary 

artery) to LAD (left anterior descending), .... to left ventricular extension branch. ... " 

(Appendix E) 

In sum, the culprit and target of a bypass was the right artery. Why then was the left 

artery operated on? The answer is because the right artery was already hardened and 

therefore harmless as revealed by Dr. Gartman: 

" .... The PDA and distal right coronary artery were so hard throught their length 

there was nothing I could do with those ...... " Appendix E) 

Issue 0: In its decision, the Court of Appeals ruled: 

" .... Mariano argues that he was denied due process at the summary 

judgment hearing because the hearing was too quick and was not 
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recorded. But Mariano's opening brief contains no authority in 

support of this claim." (Page 7, 2nd paragraph, Appendix A) 

The Court erred in overlooking two cases submitted by Appellant as authority in 

treating the rush-to-judgment trial a constitutional concern. These are the opinions of the 

U.S. Court of Appeals Ninth Circuit: 

" .... we agree that the I J denied Cruz Renton a full and fair hearing in 

violation of the Due Process Clause .... and this prejudiced Cruz Renton's 

ability to present evidence ... " Rendon v. Holder. Jr .• No. 06-70301, May 3, 

2010." 

The trial took only about 18 minutes, almost all consumed by the trial judge who 

expressed his doubt about Appellant's credentials. Hard of hearing, Appellant mistook the 

discourse as opening remarks, instead of reasons for, in effect, dismissing the case. (Ms. 

Elizabeth Cooper, Swedish attorney, was kind enough to inform the judge of Appellant's 

hearing problem. Two cases were scheduled at the same time, with the lawyers of the case 

already occupying the tables and chairs reserved for the two opposing parties. Worst, the 

proceeding was not recorded. (Ms. Cooper will confirm this narration.) 

lsssue E: The six side-issues presented here elaborate on, and reenforce the 

arguments discussed in the above four main isisues. 

1. Suppression of Documents. 

Swedish released more than five years of the bypass surgery were two reports on 

the diagnostic cardiac catheterization (Appendix F) and esophaegal test.(Appendix G). 

The reports on the diagnostic cardiac catheterization and on the transesophageal procedure 

were mailed in April, 2011 and December, 2011, respectively. 
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Needless to state, these documents were favorable to Appellant. The 

catheterization showed "no critical stenosis in the main left artery and about 65% on the 

average in some parts of the smaller arteries. The transesophageal have normal findings in 

the chambers and valves of the heart, as well in the main left artery. 

As stated in Issue C above, the bypass operation on the left artery was unnecessary 

because it was relatively healthy compared to the right artery. Also, no consent was given 

since Appellant was under sedation. (Details below) 

2. Documents Stricken Off 

In its decision affirming the grant of the summary judgment motion the Court of 

Appeals ruled: 

" ... Swedish moved to strike the exhibits attached to Mariano's briefs on 

appeals, which primarily included magazine or internet articles dealing 

with bypass surgery. the motion is granted as to all exhibits that were not 

iicluded in the Clerk's papers orotherwise properly made a part of the record 

on appeals. RAP 9.12; 10.3(a)(B)" (Appendix A) 

Under this ruling, the reports on medical tests/ interventions are admissible since 

they are included in the Clerk's Papers. However, excluded are the exhibits and among them 

are an article from Mayo Clinic (Appendix H) and discovery materials such as 

interregatories, letters and emails. 

Appellant now argues the Mayo Clinic medical advice is relevant. It has an excellent 

credential as one of the best in the field of cardiology; it has an objective outlook in solving 

problems of the heart, without reference in any case. In contrast, a hired medical consultant 

merely echoes the views of one who pays his bill. 
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The use of discovery materials has precedence: the Court of Appeals referred to 

interrogatory in opposing this medical malpractice case.(Page 1, last par., Appendix A) 

3. Informed consent. 

In its November 25, 2013 decision affirming the summary judgment motion, the Court 

of Appeals ruled: 

" .... Mariano also contends that Swedish did not secure his informed 

consent to the surgery. Specifically, Mariano alleges that he expressed 

his desire to pursue less invasive forms of treatment; that he was not 

informed of the risks of the operation; and that his consent was given 

under duress because he was 'still groggy from his diagnostic cardiac 

catheterization' when he signed the form." (Page 5, last par. and page 

6, 1st par., Appendix A) 

In response to the above, Swedish pointed out that "a Plaintiff alleging breach of the 

duty to secure informed consent must prove: (a) the health care provider failed to inform the 

patient of a MATERIAL FACT ...... RCW 7.70.050(1)" Page 6, 1st par.,Appendix A) 

The consent form reads: "The medical procedure or surgery stated on this form, 

including the possible risks, complications, alternative treatment (including non-treatment 

and anticipted results was EXPLAINED by me to the patient. {Appendix I) 

Swedish failed to inform Appelllant of such material fact; specifically, it will operate 

on the left, instead of the right ARTERY. It is because Appellant was UNDER ANAESTHESIA, 

in connection with the aborted bypass of the right artery. Appellant contends the unplanned 

decision to do bypass on the left artery (after finding that the diagnosed "culprit" right artery 

was already harmless) was definitely a MATERIAL FACT. 
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4. Statute of Limitation. 

In a footnote, the Court of Appeals stated" 

"Because the trial court properly dismissedMariano's complaint for failure 

to demonstrate material factors in dispute, we need not address whether 

his claims were also barred by the statute of limitation." (Page 2, footnote, 

Apppendix A.) 

Appellant disagress and maintains that summary judgment is not warranted if there 

are issues under dispute. A glaring example is the statute of limitation which the Court of 

Appeals did not address. On the contrary, Appellant is now raising this issue. 

The law provides that the prescribed period starts running NOT from the time of the 

bypass, but from the time doubts about the operation was DISCOVERED. 

RCW 4.16.350 provides "a discovery rule that can allow a medical malpractice 

action to be brought LATER THAN THE THREE-YEAR PERIOD". 

RCW 4.16 .. 350(c) "allows the action to be brought no later that ONE YEAR after 

'the time te patient or his representative discovered or reasonably should have 

discovered that the injury or condition was caused by such action or omission"'. 

In a letter dated October 30, 20009 to Dr. David Gartman, Swedish's heart 

surgeon, Appellant stated: 

"the bypass operation was a success, a sincere thanks to you ......... 

The purpose of this letter is to seek your opinion ...... .. the bypass operation 

centered only the LEFT side of my heart. Yet, in a complete reversal, Dr. Petersen 

....... pinpointed the RIGHT side as the 'culprit. (Appendix J) 

Not receiving any response after 11/2 YEARS, Appellant mailed a second letter dated 

April 24, 2011 which reads: 
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"This is a follow-up of my letter dted October 30, 2009 (Attached A. According to 

the Post Office, this letter wa received by your office . ........ . 

An answer to the issue raised is all/ need to erase my doubts about the bypass. 

During the many years of my recovery, I had been at peace with the outcome. 

However, lately, after reading all the available reports on the operation, I am 

now uneasy." (Appendix K) 

The complaint was filed in court on May 2, 2011, just a week after discovery 

Appellant had hoped to interrogate Dr. David Gartman on the right v.left bypass during 

deposition or trial. The deposition was aborted. A summary judgment trial precluded any 

confrontation. 

5. Naming of an expert. 

In its decision confirming summary judgment, the Court of Appeals ruled: 

" In response to interrogatories, Mariano admitted, 'I have no expert/ 

medical witness at this time. I reserve my right to name some after discovery 

and during the trial.' He never named any such experts." Page 1, last par. and 

page 2, 1st par., Appendix A) 

Contrary to above alegation, Appellant submitted the names of Dr. Harold 

Dash, Dr. Neale Smith and Dr. Frank Sheridan. In an email dated Decembeer 21, 2011, 

Appellant wrote: 

" ... Dr. Dash will be ready to be deposed in his office................. Dr. Neale 
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Smith needs a couple of months to recover from an organ transplant and 

Dr. Frank Sheridan is on one-month vacation ........ ". Appendix l) 

6. Request for Continuance. 

In its decision confirming summary judgment, the Court of Appeals ruled: 

" the records indicates that the trial court continued the hearing 

for more than two months at Mariano's request. Mariano did not 

move for any further continuances." 

This allegation is baseless. Among numerous emails back and forth, two will be 

mentioned. In Appendix L, last pragraph, Appellant asked for a 2-month extension. 

However, it was denied, as well with others. In {Appendix M, Swedish wrote: 

" .... if you provide me with the name of an expert witness supporting 

your claim at any time prior to the hearing, I will likely strike the 

hearing until the deposition of your expert can occur." 

Appellant wishes to emphasize this: Swedish did not strike the hearing not only 

inspite of Appellant being able to submit a name, as required, but more, because the named 

expert was ready to be disposed. Swedish did not call Dr. Dash. This is a continuation of a 

pattern of obstructions Swedish had employed to hide the truth. 

At this stage, a decision of the U.S. Court of Appeals declared very recently may come 

to play in the resolution of this medical malpractice case. 

" .... we conclude that the I J abused his discretion in denying Malilia's 

continuance request because I J failed to follow the BIA 's guideline when 

considering the request ... " Malilia v. Holder. Jr., No. 05-77397, February 3, 

2011. 

11 



C 0 N C L US 0 N 

Defendants usually utilize summary judgment (aka Motion to Dismiss) to win a case, 

expecially against prose plaintiffs. In this medical malpractice case, Swedish did it. The 

reason cited for summary judgment is lack of evidence, or precisely a medical expert who is 

willing to testify. Appellant could not afford to hire this kind of expert. Then, Swedish filed 

a Motion for Summary Judgment EARLY, 90 days before end of discovery, giving Appellant 

not enough time to search for other options. Appellant asked for continuance but Swedish 

demanded the name of a witness first. It was a vicious cycle. 

Appellant hoped to argue its case, in full and without restrictions, with the Court of 

Appeals. However, in a disorganized 18-minute trial, a fair and full hearing was not possible. 

Unlike in the trial court, the Court of Appeals spelled out its reasons for the affirmation in a 

8-page decision. This Petition for Review is a paragraph-by-paragraph response. 

Appellant respectfully prays that decision in this case be made now, not on whether 

the summary judgment motion is appropriate but whether the claims of wrong diagnosis and 

unnecessary bypass have merits. 

1~a,~~ 
LEONARDO C. MARIANO, prose 

Appellant 

February 10, 2014