RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON May 01, 2014, 2:51 pm BY RONALD R. CARPENTER CLERK

SUPREME COURT NO. 90011-6

RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

IN THE SUPREME COURT FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

LEONARDO C. MARIANO, Appellant

v.

SWEDISH CARDIAC SURGERY, Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER TO MOTION FOR EXTENSION AND ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Court of Appeals, Division I No. 68924-0-I

PAMELA M. ANDREWS, WSBA #14248 ANDREWS SKINNER, P.S. 645 Elliott Ave. W., Ste. 350 Seattle, WA 98119 206-223-9248/ Fax: 206-623-9050

Attorney for Respondent Swedish Cardiac Surgery

A. Identity of Respondent.

Respondent "Swedish Cardiac Surgery" (hereinafter "Swedish") the defendant in the trial court; Respondent in the Court of Appeals and Respondent herein opposes this petition for review.

B. Issues Presented for Review.

- 1. Did the trial court correctly dismiss appellant's complaint for medical negligence damages when appellant failed to present expert testimony supporting his claims in response to a properly served and filed motion for summary judgment?
- 2. Did the amount of time allowed for oral argument on the motion for summary judgment allow the parties the opportunity to argue their respective positions in further support of the briefing submitted to the court?

the fatal flaw of Petitioner's failure to demonstrate how relying upon the wrong section of RAP 18.6 (which Petitioner admits he read and which rule unambiguously distinguishes between "Service by Mail" and "Filing by Mail") could constitute an "extraordinary circumstance."

C. Introduction.

Mr. Mariano filed a medical negligence action against Swedish on May 2, 2011. [CP 1-6]. On November 22, 2011 Swedish filed a motion for summary judgment based on the appellant's failure to identify or produce for deposition a qualified expert witness supporting his claim. [CP 7-15]. Mr. Mariano first informally asked counsel for Swedish for a continuance of the date for hearing the summary judgment motion to accommodate a trip to the Philippines. [CP 191]. This request was granted. [CP 189-190]. Mr. Mariano then formally sought another continuance from the trial court that, ultimately, was denied. [CP 16-25, CP 200, CP 201-214, CP 215-16]. When Mr. Mariano failed to present any evidence to support his claim of medical negligence, the trial court properly granted Swedish's motion for summary judgment dismissing his claims. [CP 36-37].

Mr. Mariano then moved for reconsideration of the Court's order dismissing his claims. [CP 38-41]. The trial court's order denying that motion cited both the lack of evidence (expert testimony) supporting the claim, and plaintiff's untimely filing in violation of the statute of limitations as support for the original order dismissing all claims. [CP 42-43].

Mr. Mariano appealed the trial court decision. In his appellate brief he attached extraneous information that was not presented to the trial court but instead appeared to be printouts of articles from the Internet. The Court of Appeals properly struck the improper appendages to the briefing as they were not proper clerk's papers.

On November 25, 2013 the Court of Appeals issued its ruling affirming the orders of the trial court. Mr. Mariano moved for reconsideration of the Court of Appeals' ruling which was denied by the Court of Appeals on January 9, 2014.

On February 10, 2014 Mr. Mariano mailed his Petition for Review to the Supreme Court. The Supreme Court deputy clerk issued a letter March 19, 2014 advising Mr. Mariano and counsel that his petition was untimely. Mr. Mariano thereafter filed a motion for an extension of time within which to file his Petition for Review.

Mr. Mariano brought his medical negligence lawsuit without proper evidentiary support. Instead, his claims were based on his misunderstanding of his own health conditions and his personal interpretations of the medical records, as well as some unauthenticated, inappropriate articles he printed from the Internet which were inappropriately appended to his appellate brief. Mr. Mariano has presented no issues which warrant review by this Court.

D. Counter Statement of The Case.

1. Underlying Facts.

On May 2, 2011, Mr. Mariano filed an action under RCW 7.70 for professional negligence in which he alleged that the Swedish Cardiac Surgery failed to exercise the degree of care and skill expected of healthcare providers in the State of Washington when Mr. Mariano was treated by healthcare providers at the facility. [CP 3-6]. Specifically, Mr. Mariano appears to believe that the coronary artery bypass surgery he received on April 4, 2006 was negligent or unwarranted.

Mr. Mariano did not have the required expert support for his claims. In answers to discovery seeking the identity of the expert witness(es) supporting plaintiff's claim, Mr. Mariano failed to identify a single witness. [CP 148-184]. Defense counsel wrote multiple letters and emails explaining plaintiff's burden of proof in a medical negligence case and supplying the statutory source of the applicable legal standards for this claim. [CP 186-187, CP 189-191, CP 193-194].

Instead of providing this necessary proof, Mr. Mariano indicated that his experts would be identified after the close of discovery, and then attempted to suggest that the doctrine of res ipsa loquitur applied to some or all of his claims. [CP 139-199]. Based on the nature of this claim and the presenting facts, res ipsa loquitur cannot apply to this healthcare

negligence case. The primary basis for Swedish's motion for summary judgment was Mr. Mariano's lack of evidence and expert testimony relating to his allegations that Swedish or Swedish's providers breached the applicable standard of care. [CP 7-15].

In addition, Swedish's original motion offered by way of footnote, the fact that the statute of limitations for this claim expired in April 2009, well before Mr. Mariano filed this lawsuit on May 2, 2011. [CP 8]. In response, Mr. Mariano asserted that the alleged negligence was only recently discovered due, allegedly, to the actions of certain healthcare providers. Swedish argued that, given the facts of this matter, Mr. Mariano's claimed "recent discovery" was not reasonable, nor was his failure to timely bring his action excusable.

Swedish relies on the evidence presented to the trial court in asserting Mr. Mariano unquestionably failed to produce the necessary evidence to proceed with his claim. That fact alone provides a sufficient basis for summary dismissal. However, the evidence also establishes that due to his untimely filing of his complaint, the applicable statute of limitations also bars his claim. RCW 4.16.350; [CP 42-43].

Swedish's motion for summary judgment was served and filed to provide Mr. Mariano, a pro se plaintiff, nearly a month longer than the court rules establish for notice to be given. CR 56. [CP 139-199]. The

original hearing date was first continued at Mr. Mariano's request.

Unquestionably Mr. Mariano had ample time in which to offer support for his claim but failed to do so.

2. Mr. Mariano's Claim

After studies demonstrated significant three vessel coronary artery disease, Mr. Mariano had a quadruple coronary artery bypass grafting (CABG) surgery on April 4, 2006. Based on his allegations, Mr. Mariano has no issue with the bypass surgery in general, or the specific bypass of his right coronary artery. [CP 3-6]. Instead, his claim is premised on his personal belief that the bypass of his <u>left</u> coronary artery was unnecessary. [CP 3-6]. Mr. Mariano, however, failed to present any expert testimony supporting his personal belief.

Instead, in his appeal and again in this petition, he relies on medical records that predate the subject surgery, in addition to his personal opinion that a left artery bypass was not necessary. He also relies on his own interpretation of his medical records and various Internet publications. Mr. Mariano is not, and does not purport to be, a qualified medical expert. The information he presented as "evidence" appended to his appellate brief and again referenced in his petition was inappropriate and was stricken to the extent any of the attachments to his appellate brief

were not included in the clerk's papers or otherwise made a part of the record on appeal. RAP 10.3(a)(8) Appellate Court Opinion, page 7.

Mr. Mariano misunderstands both the surgery that he had, and his own medical condition. He presented no evidence that the bypass of his left coronary artery caused him actual damages. Mr. Mariano failed to demonstrate any negligence and his claims were appropriately dismissed based upon the proper application of existing legal precedent to the factual record presented.

E. Argument

1. This Court Should Deny Review as Petitioner Has Not Shown a Basis for Review under RAP 13.4(b).

Petitioner has failed to not only cite to any basis for review as required by RAP 13.4(b) but his petition in substance fails to meet any of the requirements of RAP 13.4(b). Instead, Petitioner simply re-argues factual matters he raised both in the trial court and the Court of Appeals and voices his opinion, without any legal support, that the rules of evidence and existing Supreme Court legal precedent should not apply to his case. Simply re-arguing issues previously argued, and ignoring legal standards and binding precedent, does not provide a basis for review under RAP 13.4(b). Therefore, Petitioner's request for review should be denied.

2. The Court of Appeals properly applied existing legal precedent in rendering its decision; there is no conflict between its decision and any decision of this Supreme Court and no constitutional issue or issue of substantial public interest is presented by this petition.

Petitioner identifies five issues, Issues A-E, in his petition to this court. None of the issues raised warrant review.

Issues A-C address Mr. Mariano's failure to properly establish that he suffered an injury from the failure of a healthcare provider to follow the accepted standard of care as is required by RCW 7.70.030(1). Mr. Mariano presents no evidence of or argument to support error by the Court of Appeals in its application of existing legal precedent to the facts presented. As the Court of Appeals cited, only experts are permitted to testify regarding the standard of care and whether a physician met that standard. *Young v. Key Pharmaceuticals Inc.*, 112 Wn.2d 216, 228–229, 770 P.2d 182 (1989). Here, because Mr. Mariano failed to identify any expert who would testify in support of his claims that the treatment he received at Swedish fell below the applicable standard of care, Swedish was entitled to judgment as a matter of law.

Mr. Mariano's assertion that a layperson can understand coronary bypass surgery and his allegations of negligent care is a hollow argument and was so recognized by the Court of Appeals in its decision. In his Petition for Review Mr. Mariano offers no legal authority or persuasive

argument other than his own "strong" contention that his medical malpractice complaint is a simple matter which has no "medical parameters at all." Such an assertion is meritless.

Existing Washington State Supreme Court legal standards supported dismissal of Mr. Mariano's claims at the trial court and supported the affirmation of the trial court ruling by the Court of Appeals. RCW 7.70.040; *Miller v. Jacoby*, 145 Wn.2d 65, 72, 303 P.3d 68 (2001); *Berger v. Sonneland*, 144 Wn.2d 91, 111, 206 P.3d 257 (2001).

Issue D asserts that because the summary judgment hearing lasted only approximately 18 minutes Mr. Mariano was denied due process and the Court of Appeals failed to appreciate the citations Mr. Mariano provided to support his argument. However, the record reflects that the Court of Appeals recognized Mr. Mariano's argument that he was denied due process of the summary judgment hearing because the hearing was too short and not recorded, but that Mr. Mariano's opening brief contained no authority to support the claim. In his petition Mr. Mariano asserts that a partial quote from a Ninth Circuit ruling wherein, based on the facts in that matter he quotes the Ninth Circuit as stating:

We agree that the IJ denied Cruz Renton and a full and fair hearing in violation of the Due Process Clause... And this prejudiced Cruz Renton's ability to present evidence..." Petition at page 6.

This partial quotation does not provide legal support for Mr. Mariano's contention that he was denied due process because the summary judgment hearing lasted less than 20 minutes.

Issue E has six subparts. First, Issue E(1) is unintelligible. On its face it appears to affirm that many months before the summary judgment hearing Swedish in fact produced certain requested documents through discovery. There is no impropriety identified or even argued by petitioner. It appears on its face this issue is moot as it was not addressed before the Court of Appeals and does not appear to be an issue at all.

Issue E(2) addresses the Court of Appeals' decision to strike exhibits which were not part of the clerk's papers. The Court of Appeals properly followed rules of appellate procedure in striking documents which were not properly part of the record on appeal or identified as clerk's papers in the appeal. RAP 9.12; 10.3 (a)(8). No argument on legal authority is presented which would support the contention that the Court of Appeals' ruling on the motion to strike was improper.

Issue E(3) deals with Mr. Mariano's claim of a lack of informed consent. As the Court of Appeals properly advised, if plaintiff is alleging breach of the duty to secure informed consent, he must follow the standards set forth in RCW 7.70.050(1). Again, expert testimony is

required to establish the nature and character of the treatment administered; the risks and benefits to such treatment and any possible alternative forms of treatment. RCW 7.70.050(3). Because Mr. Mariano failed to provide any expert testimony of any kind, be it in support of his claim for medical malpractice or in support of his claim for lack of informed consent, he could not, and did not, meet his burden to set forth specific facts showing a genuine issue of material fact for trial. Therefore, the trial court properly dismissed this claim and the Court of Appeals properly affirmed that dismissal.

Issue E(4) that Mr. Mariano believes the Court of Appeals should have considered the statute of limitations issue is a non-issue. The Court of Appeals found that Mr. Mariano's claim, when faced with Swedish's supported summary judgment motions, failed to demonstrate material facts in dispute. Therefore, the Court of Appeals did not need to go further and address whether or not Mr. Mariano's claim also failed under an analysis regarding the applicable statute of limitations. Mr. Mariano takes exception to the court not addressing the statute of limitations issue as he apparently believes he could present a question of fact on that issue and that by doing so it would serve to create a question of fact with respect to whether or not he demonstrated material facts in dispute regarding the issue of medical malpractice. In simple analysis, Mr. Mariano is confused

as to whether a material fact on a question of law regarding the stature of limitations would also create a material fact as to whether or not there was sufficient evidence presented to allow a claim of medical malpractice to proceed.

In the present case, because the Court of Appeals found there was not sufficient evidence to allow the medical malpractice claim to proceed it did not have to address the next issue which was, even if there had been evidence to proceed on a medical malpractice claim, was that claim barred by the applicable statute of limitations. Mr. Mariano presents no argument or authority to support the contention that the Court of Appeals needed to address a moot issue.

Issue E(5) again addresses the identification and sufficiency of identification of expert testimony which has been thoroughly addressed above.

The last issue raised, Issue E(6), is Mr. Mariano's dispute that he should have been granted additional time to respond to the summary judgment motion. As the Court of Appeals properly stated in its opinion, although Mr. Mariano argued that the trial court erred in failing to continue the summary judgment hearing so that he could conduct additional discovery, the record demonstrated that the trial court did continue the hearing for more than two months on Mr. Mariano's request.

Thereafter Mr. Mariano did not move for an additional continuance. Mr.

Mariano had almost a year from the date of the filing of his complaint to

conduct discovery before the complaint was dismissed. Mr. Mariano has

presented nothing to this court to support a contention that the Court of

Appeals' affirmation of the trial court's consideration of the summary

judgment motion under these circumstances was improper.

III. CONCLUSION

Because petitioner has failed to identify any basis for discretionary

review pursuant to RAP 13.4(b) and, the issues presented for review do

not in substance satisfy any of the bases for which a petition for review

will be accepted by the State Supreme Court, Mr. Mariano's petition for

review should be denied